
 
 
 

Board Meeting Agenda 
 

Russ Baggerly, Director 
Richard Handley, Director 
Bill Hicks, Director 

Pete Kaiser, Director 
James Word, Director 

 
 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
September 8, 2010 

4:30 P.M. – DISTRICT OFFICE 
 

 
Right to be heard:  Members of the public have a right to address the Board directly on any 
item of interest to the public which is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.  The 
request to be heard should be made immediately before the Board's consideration of the item. 
No action shall be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is 
otherwise authorized by subdivision (b) of  ¶54954.2 of the Government Code and except that 
members of a legislative body or its staff may briefly respond to statements made or questions 
posed by persons exercising their public testimony rights under section 54954.3 of the 
Government Code. 

 
 

1. Public comments. 
     
2. General Manager comments.   
 
3. Board of Director comments. 
 
4. Consent Agenda 
 

a. Minutes of the August 11, 2010 Board Meeting. 
b. Recommend approval of the invoice in the amount of $54,995 to 

Alliant Insurance Services for the Special Liability Insurance 
Program coverage from 9/29/2010 to 9/29/2011. 

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Consent Agenda 
 
5. Bills 
 
6. Committee/Manager Reports 
 

a. Recreation Committee Minutes 
 
7. Resolution awarding a contract for the Filter Vessel Interior Repair & 

Coating Specification 10-335 to ERS Industrial Services Inc. in the amount 
of $178,740.62. 

 
  RECOMMEDNED ACTION: Adopt Resolution 
 

 1



 2

8. Resolution authorizing the execution of a five year agreement with Ojai 
Rotary West for the Ojai Big Chili Cook Off. 

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution 
 
9. Recommend authorization of participation costs for a Ventura River 

Watershed Coordinator position for a period of three years, in cooperation 
with the many other local agencies in the Ventura River Area. 

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion approving recommendation 
 
10. Information Items: 
 

a. Monthly Cost Analysis for operation of Robles, fisheries and fish 
passage. 

b. Report regarding the recent lake treatment for algae. 
c. Recreation Area Report for July. 
d. Letter of appreciation from AWA. 
e. Letter from National Marine Fisheries Service regarding the Mosler 

Ojai Quarry.  
f. News Articles 
g. Investment Report 

 
11. Adjournment  
  

If you require special accommodations for attendance at or participation in this 
meeting, please notify our office 24 hours in advance at (805) 649-2251, ext. 
113.  (Govt. Code Section 54954.1 and 54954.2(a). 



 1

Minutes of the Casitas Municipal Water District 
Board Meeting Held 

August 11, 2010 
 

 A meeting of the Board of Directors was held August 11, 2010 at Casitas' 
Office, Oak View, California.  Directors Handley, Kaiser, Baggerly, Word and 
Hicks were present. Also present were Steve Wickstrum, General Manager, 
Rebekah Vieira, Clerk of the Board, and Attorney, John Mathews.  There were 
two staff members and no members of the public in attendance.  President 
Handley led the group in the flag salute. 

 
1. Public comments. 
 

None 
 
2. General Manager comments.   
 

Mr. Wickstrum reported that the annual audit is being conducted this week 
and is going well.   
 

Mr. Wickstrum informed the board that the lake is experiencing an algae 
bloom consisting of long stringy algae that coats the filter plant.  It is sticky and 
difficult to backwash out.  We propose using Clean Lakes, Inc. to provide a 
shoreline treatment of hydrogen peroxide at a cost of approximately $15,000 to 
try to combat this algae.  This is not the typical taste and odor problem that we 
have treated with copper sulfate. Now is a good time to try this treatment. Water 
Quality Supervisor Susan McMahon will follow up on the effectiveness of this 
treatment. 
 

Mr. Wickstrum reported that he spoke with Michael Jackson regarding the 
scheduling of a meeting with the Bureau of Reclamation.  He then mentioned a 
letter that had been delivered to all directors from a customer regarding extra car 
fees at the gate.  Park Services Manager Carol Belser has been provided with 
the letter and will resolve the issue. 
 
3. Board of Director comments. 
 

Director Baggerly reported that he attended the Tri County Fish Team 
Forum and the Salmonid Restoration Federation will be having their annual 
conference in San Luis Obispo and he suggested having this as a topic of 
discussion for a board meeting in September to consider possible levels of 
participation.  Director Baggerly requested that he receive any pleadings in the 
CMWD vs. United States case.  He then mentioned the current success with 
dealing with gophers at the lake.  Carol Belser reported that in Isla Vista which is 
a non pesticide district they abated the gophers by using ex lax.  It does not 
affect birds of prey.  They have tried this at the lake and have seen positive 
results.  Director Kaiser suggested the Audobon Society may be able to help with 
owl boxes. 



 2

4. Consent Agenda 
 

a. Minutes of the July 28, 2010 Board Meeting. 
b. Resolution directing the execution of a joint funding agreement 

between United States Geological Survey and Casitas for stream 
gaging stations. 

c. Recommend approval of a purchase order to Consolidated 
Electrical Distributors in the amount of $93,700 for the purchase of 
electrical motor control centers and associated electrical equipment 
for upper Ojai pump plant electrical upgrade project. 

d. Resolution cancelling the August 25th board meeting. 
 

  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Consent Agenda 
 

Director Word asked for item b to be pulled for discussion 
 
 The consent agenda minus item b was offered by Director Kaiser, 
seconded by Director Baggerly and adopted by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Hicks, Word, Baggerly, Kaiser, Handley  
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
  Resolution is numbered 10-22. 
 
 Director Word expressed concerns regarding federal matching funds for 
the joint funding agreement in item b.  Mr. Wickstrum explained they have been 
consistent at continuing this agreement and getting the funding for it. 
 

The resolution for item b was offered by Director Word, seconded by 
Director Kaiser and passed by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Hicks, Word, Baggerly, Kaiser, Handley  
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
  Resolution is numbered 10-23. 
 
5. Bills 
 
 On the motion of Director Kaiser, seconded by Director Baggerly and 
passed, the bills were approved. 
 
6. Information Items: 
 

a. Monthly Cost Analysis for operation of Robles, fisheries and fish 
passage. 

b. Cost Analysis for fiscal year 2009/2010. 



 3

c. News Articles 
d. Investment Report 

 
7. Adjournment  
  
 President Handley adjourned the meeting at 4:53 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
       __________________________ 
       Secretary 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
DATE:  September 3, 2010 
TO:         Board of Directors 
FROM: Assistant to General Manager, Rebekah Vieira 
 
Re:  Approval of Special Liability Insurance Program Invoice 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve the invoice to Alliant Insurance in 
the amount of $54,995 for participation in the Special Liability Insurance Program from 
9/29/10 to 9/29/11. 
  
BACKGROUND: 
 
The renewal proposal for our SLIP insurance shows a modest increase in the amount of 
$11.93.  The coverage levels remain the same.  
 
If you have any questions, please discuss those questions with me. 







































































CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
DATE:  August 10, 2010 
 
TO:         Board of Directors 
 
FROM: General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 
Re:  Recreation Committee Meeting of August 9, 2010 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 

    
1. Roll Call.  Directors Baggerly and Hicks 
 Staff – PSM Carol Belser 
 Public – Gary Wolfe, Christina Hansen 
 
2. Public comments.  None. 

 
3. Board/Management comments. 

The General Manager reported that Michael Jackson, Bureau of Reclamation Area 
Manager, had called the General Manager to thank the District for the recent letter and 
followed with a discussion regarding the recreation agreement issue.  Mr. Jackson 
stated that he would arrange a September meeting with Donald Glaser to discuss this 
issue further.  In the meantime, Mr. Jackson would further consider the points made by 
the District in its May 14, 2010 letter. 
 
The General Manager reported that the Bureau of Reclamation has indicated progress 
on the environmental reviews for the reservation office and fence replacement 
projects, and that it is likely that the project will be ready for proceeding this fall. 
 
The Park Services Manager reported that during a hot evening there was an incident 
in the park that will cause further review of policy and standard operating procedures, 
and may lead to additional training of employees. The Park Service Manager will 
report at a later date after assessing the issues. 
 
The Park Services Manager presented an update on the development of signage that 
notifies the public that body contact with Lake Casitas is prohibited.  Approximately 13 
notifications to the public were made by staff in July.  It was noted that the sign vendor 
is extremely busy at the end of the fiscal year with orders and should have signs for 
Casitas by the end of the month. 
 
Director Hicks observed a decline in the number of hosts in the park.  The park 
Services Manager explained that the decline during the summer months is a usual 
occurrence. 

 
4. Update on Fisheries Planning. 

PSM Belser shared with the Committee that the District staff is developing and 



implementing a creel survey and collecting opinions from angler on their desires at 
Lake Casitas.  Park staff are working closely with fisheries staff to collect data.   
 
The key issue is the impending moratorium on fish planting that will be imposed by the 
Department of Fish and Game, effective January 1, 2011.  The question before 
Casitas is how to keep recreational fishing sustainable at Lake Casitas.  There may be 
direct responses that need further consideration such as protection of additional 
spawning areas and/or the application of catch and release requirements. 
 
Director Baggerly suggested that the District consider appealing to the Fish and Game 
Commission.  While the gathering of data may provide insight, there may be specific 
actions that the District should consider implementing prior to the moratorium.   
 

5. Overview of the Fiscal Year 2009-10 Events.   
PSM Belser provided the Committee with a list of the events and the revenue received 
by Casitas for each event.  The Committee had a brief discussion on the standard cost 
applied for events, noting competition with other venues and that the intent was to 
make sure that District costs were covered by the event revenue. 
 

6. Preliminary Discussion on a proposal for a Music Festival in 2011. 
PSM Belser introduced Christine Hansen, President/CEO of Thirty-Three Productions, 
Inc., who has approach Casitas with a concept proposal for a “World Music Festival” 
and “Well Being Expo” at Lake Casitas in September 2011.  Ms. Hansen stated that 
the two-day festival would likely occupy the entire recreation area and offer a wide 
variety of events and have a wellness and family theme.  It was recognized that this 
was a very ambitious proposal and will take a concerted effort by Casitas and the 
promoter to develop the use agreement and produce the event.  Ms. Hansen has 
produced several very well recognized events around the world and as a local 
resident, sees great visions for a special event at Lake Casitas. 
 
The Committee asked questions concerning the financial backing of the event, level of 
public use, potential review by the Bureau of Reclamation, maintaining regular day use 
during the event and involving the concessionaires. 
 
With such an expansive event, there are many questions to be raised and answered.  
Casitas and Ms. Hansen will proceed with the development of the use agreement and 
address the many issues such that the event can be successful. 
 

7. Incidents and Comments. 
The committee was informed about the report of a kayak potentially entering Lake 
Casitas from Highway 150.  Staff received a phone call and a description of the vehicle 
and color of kayak, but did not find the person.  Staff will remain vigilant on any 
unauthorized access to Lake Casitas. 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

TO:  STEVE WICKSTRUM, GENERAL MANAGER 

FROM:  NEIL COLE, CIVIL ENGINEER 

SUBJECT: AWARD CONTRACT-FILTER VESSEL INTERIOR REPAIR & COATING SPECIFICATION 10-335 

DATE:  AUGUST 27, 2010 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors adopt the resolution accepting the proposal submitted by 
the lowest responsible bidder and award the contract for the construction of the Filter Vessel Interior 
Repair & Coating, Specification 10-335 to ERS Industrial Services Inc. in the amount of $178740.62.  It 
is further recommended that the President of the Board execute the agreement for said work and the 
Board authorize staff to proceed with the administration of the contract. 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION: 
 
The Marion Walker Pressure Filtration Plant has eight pressure filters.  The filters are now fifteen years 
old.  An earlier inspection identified areas with corrosion and areas where the coating had worn off the 
interior of the filter.  In winter and spring of 2006, the interior of Filter No. 8 was repaired and coated 
with a polymer coating. Filter No. 2 and No. 4 were repaired and recoated during the winter and spring 
of 2007.  Filter No. 5 was completed in 2008, Filter No. 3 was completed in 2009 and Filter 6 was 
completed in 2010.  This contract, if approved by the Board, will address Filter No. 7 by removing the 
existing filter media, repairing areas with significant corrosion, replacing two manways, coating the 
interior of the vessel with an improved coating and reinstalling the media in Filter No. 7. The one 
remaining filter is anticipated to have similar work completed next year.   
 
The project was advertised through F.W. Dodge.  Five bidders completed the mandatory job walk. 
Three bidders submitted proposals.  The bid results are 
 

FIRM AMOUNT 
ERS Industrial Services $178,740.62 
Prominent Systems $225,488.00 
Blois Construction $233,741.00 
 
The work required to remove the filter media and re-install the media is specialized work.  ERS 
Industrial Services has successfully completed this work on five out of the six filters completed to date. 
 
The FY 2010-11 Budget allocated $350,000 for the filter coating work.  . 
 



U:\Management\Agendas\Board meetings\2010\09-08-10\Resolution335.doc 

 CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 
 

RESOLUTION AWARDING A CONTRACT 
FOR THE FILTER VESSEL INTERIOR REPAIR & COATING 

SPECIFICATION NO. 10-335 
 

WHEREAS, the District invited bids from qualified contractors for the above-referenced 
project, and 
 

WHEREAS, the District received three bids, with the lowest responsive bid submitted by ERS 
Industrial Services, Inc. in the sum of $178,740.62 and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Casitas Municipal 
Water District as follows: 
 

1. That the bid from ERS Industrial Services, Inc. in the amount of $178,740.62 be accepted 
for the Filter Vessel Interior Repair & Coating Project (Spec. #10-335) and a contract awarded. 
 

2. That staff is hereby authorized and directed to proceed with the administration of the 
contract with ERS Industrial Services, Inc.  

 
 

ADOPTED this 8th day of September, 2010. 
 
 

____________________________________ 
President, 
Casitas Municipal Water District 

ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________________ 
Secretary, 
Casitas Municipal Water District 
 
 
 



 1

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

LAKE CASITAS RECREATION AREA 
 

DATE:  August 12, 2010 
 
TO:  Steve Wickstrum, General Manager 
  Carol Belser, Park Services Manager 
 
FROM:  Suzi Taylor, Park Services Officer  
 
SUBJECT: Five-Year Event Agreement  
 
Recommendation: 
 
It is recommended Casitas enter into a five-year agreement with Ojai Rotary – West for the Ojai Big Chili 
Cook Off. 
 
Background: 
 
Ojai Rotary – West is interested in signing a five-year event agreement.  The request was reviewed and 
supported by the Recreation Committee at their June 7, 2010 meeting.  A five year agreement will save staff 
time in not having to put agreements together every year, and for the sponsor, locks in their preferred date 
and gives them the security of knowing they have a venue with a predictable rate for the event.  This 
arrangement has worked well for the Ojai Rotary Club’s Ojai Wine Festival. 
 
Analysis: 
 
The attached agreement follows the same agreement requirements and parameters we use for all our special 
event agreements with the exception of the addition multi years terminating in after the event in 2014.  Of 
note is the cap on the minimum amount for the event of $2,500 which occurs in 2011. This fee has 
progressively increased over 150% since 2002, when the event fee was $1,600 per day; the automatic 
increase is set to end in 2011 with the expiration of the agreement for the Wine Festival.  Staff is 
recommending a set rate of $2,500 for the last four years of this contract.  Also notable, both the Wine 
Festival and the Big Chili Cook Off historically paid well above the minimum fee, as their gross receipts 
exceeded $100,000. 
 
Inquiries for event fees were made to other areas where similar comparisons were difficult to make as 
has been found when comparing rates on other recreation components.  For example, Lake Piru rents the 
entire facility for $10,000 in the off season, at Soule County Park the fee is $1,000 plus vehicle fees and 
Lake Cachuma has an area where an annual music festival takes place at a charge of $3,500 per day plus 
$1.50 per head.      
 
Summary: 
 
The Big Chili Cook Off event was held for the first time in 2009 and went well with no incidents to report. 
October is a good time of the year for this event to take place when the summer crowds have dropped 
off. Therefore, Staff recommends the Board approve the recommendation for the Ojai Rotary Club to enter 
into a five-year agreement for the Ojai Big Chili Cook Off to be held the first Saturday in October through 



 2

2014.    
 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING 
THE PRESIDENT OF THE BOARD TO EXECUTE 

A FIVE YEAR AGREEMENT BETWEEN CASITAS AND  
OJAI ROTARY - WEST FOR THE OJAI BIG CHILI COOK OFF 

 
 

 WHEREAS, the Ojai Rotary - West Club sponsored a Chili Cook Off at the Lake 
Casitas Recreation Area in 2009;  and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Rotary’s Wine Festival has been a very successful event and Ojai 
Rotary - West desires to enter into an agreement with Casitas to sponsor the Ojai Big 
Chili Cook Off event for five consecutive years; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Casitas has reviewed the Agreement and finds it to be in order; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the President of the Board is 
hereby authorized and directed to execute the Ojai Rotary - West Five Year Agreement 
for the annual Ojai Big Chili Cook Off at the Lake Casitas Recreation Area in 2010 
through 2014.  
 
 ADOPTED this 8th day of September, 2010. 
 
 
 
      _____________________________ 
      President 

Casitas Municipal Water District 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Secretary 
Casitas Municipal Water District 



 1

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

LAKE CASITAS RECREATION AREA 
FIVE YEAR AGREEMENT FOR EVENT 

 
OJAI BIG CHILI COOK OFF 

MULTI-YEAR CONTRACT 2010-2014 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER 
DISTRICT, called herein "Casitas", and OJAI ROTARY - WEST, called herein "Sponsor".  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS MUTUALLY AGREED as follows: 
 
1. Event. 
 

(a) Sponsor will conduct the Ojai Big Chili Cook Off (hereinafter referred to as “Event”) on Saturdays, 
October 2, 2010, October 1, 2011, October 6, 2012, October 5, 2013 and October 4, 2014.  Because of the family 
oriented nature of the Lake Casitas Recreation Area facilities, Casitas reserves the right to disapprove any music, 
acts, entertainment, performances or attractions at any time which it considers, in its sole discretion, to be 
inconsistent with its current philosophy. 
 

(b) While Casitas will make every effort to provide its facilities for Sponsor’s events, Casitas shall 
have no liability to Sponsor if Casitas’ facilities become restricted or closed for reasons including, but not limited 
to, acts of God, terrorism, war or the inability to provide facilities if permitting agencies, including the Bureau of 
Reclamation, revoke permits or authorization to use facilities.  This includes the Event Area itself as well as 
parking areas.  In the event Casitas loses the ability to allow vehicles to be parked on the Watershed lands, Casitas 
will make every effort to make space available for vehicles to be parked within the Recreation Area, however, any 
costs such as busing or obtaining satellite parking shall be Sponsor’s sole responsibility with no liability to Casitas 
whatsoever.   
 
2.  Location.  The events will be staged at the Wadliegh Arm Event Area.  Sponsor will have exclusive use of 
the area east from the shoreline gate at trailer storage to the closed area fence line at the beginning of the East 
Shoreline Trail. 
 
3. Time and Description of Activities.  Activities will begin at noon (12:00 p.m.) and end at 6:00 p. m. on 
each specified day of the Event.  Attendance, as reported by Sponsor, is expected to be approximately 3,000 people 
per day.  The event will include a chili and salsa cook off, live music, vendors and food and drink.  
 
4. Payment to Casitas.  Sponsor shall pay Casitas the following amounts: 
 
 (a) A minimum payment in 2010 of two thousand four hundred dollars ($2,400.00) per day and 

in years 2011 – 2014 two thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500.00) per day. 
 
or the greater of: 

 
 (b) Ten percent (10%) of total gross receipts up to and including $100,000.00 as defined in (3) below. 
 

(c) Twelve percent (12%) of total gross receipts from $100,000.01 up to and including $150,000.00 as 
defined in (3) below. 
 
 (d) Fifteen percent (15%) of total gross receipts over $150,000.00 as defined in (3) below. 
 



 2

  (1) The payment schedule outlined above shall remain in full force and effect even if Casitas’ 
power service provider is unable to supply electrical power during the event.  Casitas shall 
have no liability in the event this occurs. 

 
  (2) The above payment shall continue as long as tickets are sold for the event.  Casitas will 

meet with Sponsor within thirty (30) days after the event to account for tickets used and 
receive payment therefor.  

 
  (3) "Gross Receipts" 
 
   a. Except as specifically provided by policy statement issued by the Casitas General 
Manager, the term "gross receipts" as used in this Agreement, is defined to be all money or charges received from 
ticket sales, sales of any merchandise by Sponsor, food vendor application fees, art/craft vendor application fees, 
and revenue received from parking and camping. 
 
   b. Except as specifically provided below or by policy statement issued by the General 
Manager, there shall be no deduction from gross receipts for any overhead or cost or expense of operations, such as, 
but without limitation to salaries, wages, costs of goods, interest, debt amortization, credit, collection costs, 
discount from credit card operations, insurance and taxes.  Bona fide bad debts actually incurred by Sponsor or its 
subcontractors, assignees, licensees, concessionaires and permittees may be deducted from gross receipts.  There 
shall, however, be no deduction for bad debts based on past experience or transfers to a bad debt reserve.  
Subsequent collection of bad debts previously not reported as gross receipts shall be included in gross receipts at 
the time they are collected. 
 
   c. Except as specifically provided below or by policy statement, gross receipts 
reported by Sponsor must include the full usual charges for any charges for any services, goods, rentals or facilities.  
Gross receipts shall not include direct taxes imposed upon the consumer and collected there from by the Sponsor 
such as, but not limited to, retail sales taxes, excise taxes, or related direct taxes, which are direct taxes paid 
periodically by Sponsor to a governmental agency accompanied by a tax return statement. 
 
   d. The Casitas General Manager, by policy statement, consistent with recognized and 
accepted business and accounting practices, and with the approval of Casitas Legal Counsel, may further interpret 
the term "gross receipts" as used in this Agreement. 
 
  e. "Gross sales price":  the total consideration resulting from the transfer or granting 
control of this Agreement determined by the total of cash payments and the market value of all non-cash 
consideration, including, but not limited to, stocks, bonds, deferred payments, secured and unsecured notes, and 
forbearances regarding claims and judgments. 
 
   f. Sponsor shall be required to maintain a method of accounting which, to the 
satisfaction of the Casitas General Manager, shall correctly and accurately reflect the gross receipts and 
disbursements of Concessionaire in connection with event.  The method of accounting, including bank accounts, 
established for said event shall be separate from the accounting system used for any other business operated by 
Sponsor.  Such method shall include the keeping of the following documents: 
 
    (i) Regular books of accounting such as general ledgers. 
 
    (ii) Sequentially numbered tickets and/or armbands (to include tickets sold, 

given used or unaccounted for).  All entrance to the event shall, for the 
purpose of accounting, count as tickets used. 

 
    (iii) Journals including any supporting and underlying documents such as 

vouchers, checks, tickets, bank statements, etc. 
 



 3

    (iv) State and Federal income tax returns and sales tax returns and checks and 
other documents providing payment of sums shown. 

 
    (v) Cash register tapes appropriately identified as to type of gross receipt 

(daily tapes may be separated but shall be retained so that from day to day 
the sales can be identified). 

 
    (vi) Any other accounting records that the Casitas General Manager deems 

necessary for proper reporting of receipts. 
 
   g. All sales and fee collections shall be recorded.  The means of recording such sales 
and fee collections may include electronic data processing and record keeping equipment.  The electronic data 
processing and record keeping equipment shall contain such features as the Casitas General Manager may 
reasonably require for the purpose of assuring that an accurate record of the transaction is created and retained by 
the equipment to be used.   
 
   h. All documents, books and accounting records shall be open for inspection and re-
inspection at any reasonable time during the term of this Agreement.  In addition, the Casitas General Manager may 
from time to time conduct an audit and re-audit of the books and business conducted by Sponsor and observe the 
operation of the business so that accuracy of the above records can be confirmed.  All information obtained in 
connection with the Casitas General Manager's inspections of records or audit shall be treated as confidential 
information and exempt from public disclosure thereof to the extent permitted by law. 
 
   i. Sponsor shall not be required to maintain those documents, books and accounting 
records, required by this section, that pertain to the period for which an audit has been completed and a report of the 
finding has been issued by the Casitas General Manager and accepted by the Sponsor.  If there is a dispute as a 
result of said audit, the documents, books and accounting records shall be maintained until all audit disputes have 
either been settled by agreement of the parties, or adjudicated by the final judgment of a court of competent 
jurisdiction. 
 
   j. Notwithstanding paragraphs 4(h) and (i), Sponsor shall comply with all State and 
Federal retention of records requirements. 
 
   k. Sponsor shall furnish the Casitas General Manager with a gross receipts report 
showing the amount payable there from to Casitas.  In addition thereto, Sponsor shall furnish a financial statement 
and a balance sheet prepared in a form acceptable to Casitas.  The financial statement shall be submitted within 
thirty (30) days after the event. 
 
   l. In the event that an audit or review conducted by the Casitas General Manager 
finds that due to Sponsor’s non-compliance with its obligation to report gross receipts received in connection with 
this event, an actual loss and/or a projected loss of revenue to Casitas can be determined, the Casitas General 
Manager shall bill Sponsor for said losses and said amount is to be paid to Casitas within thirty (30) days following 
billing therefore unless otherwise extended by the Casitas General Manager.  
 
   m. Should the Casitas General Manager find that the additional payment due to 
Casitas exceeds two percent (2%) of the total amount which should have been paid as determined by such review or 
audit and observation, and there is no reasonable basis for the failure to report and pay thereon, Sponsor shall also 
pay the cost of the audit as determined by Casitas. 
 
   n. Sponsor shall cause any and all of its subcontractors to comply with these 
requirements except that a subcontractor shall only be required to establish and maintain those accounting records 
that the Casitas General Manager deems necessary to examine the reported gross receipts in accordance with 
generally accepted auditing standards. 
 



 4

 (e) All expenses and invoices owed to Casitas shall be paid in full within thirty (30) days after the 
event unless otherwise noted. 
 
 (f) Seven hundred fifty dollars ($750.00) refundable security deposit due to Casitas thirty (30) days 
prior to each Event each year.  The security deposit shall be fully refundable to Sponsor within thirty (30) days after 
each Event provided that Sponsor shall have returned the area to a clean pre-use condition including trash pick up 
and removal, and sign removal, to Casitas’ satisfaction and that sponsor shall have paid in full, all expenses and 
invoices owed to Casitas which may include, but shall not be limited to: 
 
  (1) Any charges, billed at the rate of fifty dollars ($50.00) per hour, for removal of signs.  Any 

signs remaining posted after one (1) day after the event will be removed by Casitas Staff 
and the Sponsor billed therefor. 

 
  (2) Any costs for clean up in excess of the security deposit incurred by Casitas and billed to 

Sponsor. 
 

 (g) Seven hundred fifty dollars ($750.00)  non-refundable fee due to Casitas at the time of execution of 
contract, and 30 (thirty) days prior to each Event each year, to secure the event date(s) stated in paragraph 1(a) 
above with Casitas.  This amount will be applied towards fees due referenced in Section 4(a) thru 4(d). 

 
5. Banner Fee. Space is not guaranteed, but if available, Sponsor may display a banner at the corner of 
Highway 150 and Santa Ana Road with the prior approval of Casitas as to context and size.  Sponsor shall provide 
the banner proof for approval to Casitas a minimum of ten (10) days prior to banner display date.  Casitas will 
display said banner starting on the Monday immediately prior to the Event through the completion of the Event.  
Sponsor shall pay one hundred fifty dollars ($150.00) for a seven day duration per each annual event after service 
has been provided each year.  Fees for this service shall be paid in accordance with Section 4(e). 
 
6. Services Provided by Casitas.  Casitas shall provide the following for the Event: 
 

(a) Forty (40) trash cans. 
 

(b) Seventy Five (75) tables already located in the area.  
 
(c) Parking for the Event in a designated area on the north side of Santa Ana Road opposite the Event 

Area.  Casitas shall provide all signs for cross walks and parking, and Sponsor shall pay Casitas for any signs not 
returned after the Event. 
 

(d) Encroachment permit from the County of Ventura for temporary traffic control for use of parking. 
 
(e) Labor and materials for the Event that are available and agreed upon in writing prior to the Event at 

Sponsor’s cost.  
 

(f) Sponsor may use the water faucets in the Event Area. 
 

(g) Sponsor may use the electrical outlets in the Event Area, which are supplied by Casitas.  Under no 
circumstances shall the electricity panels be altered or tampered with by any person.  Breaker panels are to remain 
locked for safety purposes and only Casitas personnel shall have access to the panels. 
 

(h) Sponsor understands that no refunds, credits or adjustments will be made in the event Casitas’ 
power service provider is unable to supply electrical power during the Event.  Casitas shall have no liability in the 
event this occurs.



 5

(i) Nothing in this Agreement provides for the storage of Sponsor’s equipment.  The storage provided 
for in Sponsor’s Ojai Wine Festival Agreement dated February 14, 2007 and expires August 31, 2011. 
 
7. Provisions by Sponsor.  Sponsor shall provide the following for the Event: 
 

(a) A minimum of thirty (30) chemical toilets, including at least one (1) that complies with ADA 
requirements for the handicapped.  The required number of chemical toilets may increase or decrease year to year at 
Casitas’ sole option based on attendance trends.  Sponsor agrees to provide Casitas with a copy of the contract at 
least ten (10) days prior to the Event.   
 

(b) Any member of Casitas’ Staff or Board may enter the Event at any time to monitor the Event for 
quality control, at no charge, and without presenting a ticket. 
            

 (c) Trash dumpsters for the Event.  Sponsor shall make arrangements with a local disposal service for 
supply and removal of dumpsters.  Sponsor agrees to provide Casitas with a copy of the contract at least ten (10) 
days prior to the Event.  A 40 yard dumpster shall be included in Sponsor’s arrangements. 
                        

(d) Solid Waste Reduction & Recycling.  In order to comply with AB 2176 which has been enacted in 
an attempt to reduce the amount of waste going to landfills, Sponsor shall: 

 
(1) Submit a written plan to Casitas for Casitas’ approval, ten (10) days prior to the Event, 

outlining a method to reduce and recycle solid waste generated as a result of the Event.  
The plan may include arrangements with a local waste hauler to pick up and dispose of 
waste and recyclable material which is to be sorted into separate containers.  As part of this 
program Sponsor may use available recycle containers and bags provided by Casitas.  
Sponsor shall replace any bags used. 

 
(2) If attendance is over 2,000 people per day, Sponsor shall report to Casitas within thirty (30) 

days after the Event, the amount of recyclable material collected and removed as required 
by the County of Ventura. 

 
(e) Adult crossing guards for the crosswalks at all times during which cars are parked on the watershed 

parking area, or Sponsor shall pay for Casitas to provide such guards.  Crossing guards provided by Sponsor shall 
comply with the safety requirements of any Federal, State, County and local agencies which may be applicable. 
 

(f) Adequate lighting for the Event, including the parking area.  Sponsor agrees to provide a copy of 
the lighting plan or a copy of the contract for supplemental lighting at least ten (10) days prior to the Event. 
 

(g) Security for the Event.  A written security plan shall be submitted to Casitas ten (10) days prior to 
the Event which shall include the names of individuals assigned security duties, how they are to be identified as 
security personnel and what instructions they have been provided.  The security plan shall identify the person in 
charge and how said person will communicate with local law enforcement in an emergency.  Sponsor shall provide 
certified medical personnel for this Event and a designated first aid area. 
 

(h) Sponsor shall be responsible for ensuring the safety and security of persons attending this Event, 
including, but not limited to, the Event and parking areas and shall remain responsible for securing the Event and 
parking areas by 7:00 p.m. the day of the Event. 
 

(i) Sponsor will ensure that all parked vehicles vacate the watershed parking area prior to 7:00 p.m. at 
which time the area will be locked. 
 

(j) Sponsor will make all necessary notifications and arrangements with the Ventura County Sheriff's 
and California Highway Patrol.  Sponsor shall be responsible for the cost incurred for security.  The Sponsor shall 
remain in the area until it is cleared of people attending the Event. 



 6

8. Sponsor’s Obligations.  Failure of Sponsor to carry out each and every obligation pursuant to this 
Agreement, including, but not limited to providing permits and insurance within ten (10) days of the Event, shall be 
grounds for immediate termination by Casitas.  Notice shall be given by fax or mail.  Casitas shall have no liability 
to Sponsor for such termination. 
 
9. Access.  Access to the Event Area will be through the auxiliary gate(s) off Santa Ana Road.  The gate(s) 
will be staffed at all times while they are open and will be locked shut when not guarded.  Event participants 
identified with valid hang tags will be allowed to access the Event parking and the Recreation Area during normal 
Lake hours without incurring additional parking fees.  After normal Lake hours, participants will enter and exit 
through the auxiliary gate(s).  At no time shall Sponsor allow any type of watercraft whatsoever to enter the 
Recreation Area through any gate under Sponsor’s control.  All watercraft shall be directed to the Main Gate for 
proper invasive species inspection. 
 
10. Setting Up and Taking Down Equipment. 
 

(a) Sponsor shall have non-exclusive use to set up on Friday immediately prior to the event and non-
exclusive use for take-down on Sunday immediately following the event. 

 
(b) Casitas will not assume responsibility or be liable for items or equipment left on the premises by 

Sponsor or others associated with this Event.  Items remaining after the take down period may be removed by 
Casitas, at its sole option, and Sponsor will be charged therefor. 
 
11. Sale of Alcohol.  The sale of alcoholic beverages shall be in compliance with the terms set forth in Section 
14 hereof. 
 
12. Commercial General Liability & Liquor Liability for the Event. This Section 12 regarding liquor 
liability shall not apply if alcohol is not sold at the Event. 
 

(a) Coverage.    Coverage for commercial general liability shall be at least as broad as the following: 
 

(1) Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability Coverage (Occurrence Form CG 
0001). 

 
(2) Insurance Services Office Liquor Liability Coverage (Occurrence Form CG 0033). 

 
 

(b) Limits.  Sponsor shall, during the course of this Event, maintain limits no less than the following: 
 

(1) General Liability.  TWO MILLION DOLLARS ($2,000,000) per occurrence for bodily 
injury property damage and personal injury.  If Commercial General Liability Insurance or 
other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregate limit shall 
apply separately to the project/location (with the ISO CG 2503, or ISO CG 2504, or 
insurers equivalent endorsement provided to Casitas) or the general aggregate limit shall be 
twice the required occurrence limit. 

 
(2) Liquor Liability.  If alcoholic beverages are served, ONE MILLION DOLLARS 

($1,000,000) per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage.  If a form with a 
general aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to 
the project/location (with the ISO CG 2503, or ISO CG 2504, or insurer’s equivalent 
endorsement provided to the District) or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the 
required occurrence limit. 

 
(c) Required Provisions.  The general liability and liquor liability (if any) policies are to contain, or be 

endorsed to contain the following provisions: 



 7

 
(1) The United States of America (Bureau of Reclamation), Casitas, its directors, officers, 

employees, or authorized volunteers shall be named as additional insured  (via ISO 
endorsement CG 2026 or insurer’s equivalent for general liability coverage) as respects: 
liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of the Sponsor; products and 
completed operations of the Sponsor; premises occupied or used by the Sponsor.  The 
coverage shall contain no special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to Casitas, 
its directors, officers, employees, or authorized volunteers. 

 
(2) For any claims related to this Event, the Sponsor’s insurance shall state that coverage is 

primary as respects the United States of America (Bureau of Reclamation), Casitas 
Municipal Water District, its directors, officers, employees, or authorized volunteers, and 
any insurance, self insurance, or other coverage obtained or maintained by Casitas, its 
directors, officers, employees, or authorized volunteers shall be in excess of said primary 
coverage and not contributing. 

 
(3) Any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the policies including breaches 

of warranties shall not affect coverage provided to the United States of America (Bureau of 
Reclamation), Casitas, its directors, officers, employees, or authorized volunteers. 

 
(4) The Sponsor’s insurance shall apply separately to the insured against whom claim is made 

or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer’s liability. 
 

(5) Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall 
not be canceled by either party, except after thirty (30) days (10 days for non-payment of 
premium) prior written notice by U.S. Mail has been given to Casitas. 

 
(6) Such liability insurance shall indemnify the Sponsor against loss from liability imposed by 

law upon, or assumed under contract by, the Sponsor for damages on account of such 
bodily injury (including death), property damage, and personal injury. 

 
(7) The general liability policy shall cover bodily injury and property damage liability, owned 

and non-owned equipment, and blanket contractual liability. 
 

 (d) Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions.  Any deductible or self-insured retention must be 
declared to and approved by Casitas.  At the option of Casitas, the insurer shall either reduce or eliminate such 
deductibles or self-insured retentions. 
 

(e) Acceptability of Insurers. All of the insurance shall be provided on policy forms and through 
companies satisfactory to Casitas.  Insurance is to be placed with insurers having a current A.M. Best rating of no 
less than A-:VII or equivalent or as otherwise approved by Casitas. 
 

(f) Workers’ Compensation & Employer’s Liability Insurance.   By his/her signature hereunder, 
Sponsor certifies that he/she is aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the California Labor Code, which require 
every employer to be insured against liability for workers’ compensation or to undertake self-insurance in 
accordance with the provisions of that code, and he/she will comply with such provisions before commencing the 
Event.  The Sponsor shall cover or insure under the applicable laws relating to workers’ compensation insurance, 
all of the employees working on or about the Event, in accordance with the "Workers’ Compensation and Insurance 
Act," Division IV of the Labor Code of the State of California and any Acts amendatory thereof.  The Sponsor shall 
provide employer’s liability insurance in the amount of at least ONE MILLION DOLLARS ($1,000,000) per 
accident for bodily injury and disease.    In the event Workers’ Compensation & Employer’s Liability Insurance 
does not apply to Sponsor, Sponsor shall execute a California Workers’ Compensation Law Certificate of 
Exemption. 
 



 8

(g) Evidences of Insurance.  Within thirty (30) days prior to the Event, Sponsor shall file with Casitas a 
Certificate of Insurance (Accord Form 25-S or equivalent) signed by the insurer’s representative.  Such evidence 
shall include an original copy of the additional insured endorsement signed by the insurer’s representative.  Such 
evidence shall also include confirmation that coverage includes or has been modified to include (c) Required 
Provisions (1) through (7) above. 
 

(h) The Sponsor shall, upon demand of Casitas, deliver to Casitas such policy or policies of insurance 
and the receipts for payment of premiums thereon.  In the event evidence of such insurance coverage is not 
provided to Casitas within thirty (30) days prior to the Event, Casitas shall, at its sole option, obtain such insurance 
coverage and charge Sponsor the cost thereof plus any administrative costs involved in obtaining said insurance. 
Failure to provide the required insurance coverage may result in the loss of the use of the facility.  Sponsor shall 
provide increased limits of insurance if required of Casitas by Casitas’ insurer at no cost or liability to Casitas. 
 
13. Indemnification for the Event.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, Sponsor shall indemnify and hold 
harmless and defend the United States of America (Bureau of Reclamation), Casitas, its directors, officers, 
employees, or authorized volunteers, and each of them from and against: 
 

(a) Any and all claims, demands, causes of action, damages, costs, expenses, losses or liabilities, in 
law or in equity, of every kind and nature whatsoever, for, but not limited to, injury to or death of any person 
including the United States of America (Bureau of Reclamation), Casitas and/or Sponsor, or any directors, officers, 
employees, or authorized volunteers of Casitas or Sponsor, and damages to or destruction of property of any 
person, including but not limited to, the United States of America (Bureau of Reclamation), Casitas and/or Sponsor 
and their directors, officers, employees, or authorized volunteers, arising out of or in any manner directly or 
indirectly connected with the Event to be performed under this Agreement, however caused, regardless of any 
negligence of the United States of America (Bureau of Reclamation), Casitas or its directors, officers, employees, 
or authorized volunteers.  
 

(b) Any and all actions, proceedings, damages, costs, expenses, penalties or liabilities, in law or equity, 
of every kind or nature whatsoever, arising out of, resulting from or on account of the violation of any 
governmental law or regulation, compliance with which is the responsibility of Sponsor. 
 

(c) Any and all losses, expenses, damages (including damages to the work itself), and other costs, 
including all costs of defense, which any of them may incur with respect to the failure, neglect, or refusal of 
Sponsor to faithfully perform all of its obligations under the contract.  Such costs, expenses, and damages shall 
include all costs incurred by the indemnified parties in any lawsuits to which they are a party. 
 

(d) Sponsor shall defend, at Sponsor’s own cost, expense and risk, any and all such aforesaid suits, 
actions or other legal proceedings of every kind that may be brought or instituted against Casitas or Casitas’ 
directors, officers, employees, or authorized volunteers. 
 

(e) Sponsor shall pay and satisfy any judgment, award or decree that may be rendered against Casitas 
or its directors, officers, employees, or authorized volunteers, in any such suit, action or other legal proceeding. 
 

(f) Sponsor shall reimburse Casitas and its directors, officers, employees, or authorized volunteers, for 
any and all legal expenses and costs incurred by each of them in connection therewith or in enforcing the indemnity 
herein provided. 
 

(g) Sponsor agrees to carry insurance for this purpose as set out in the specifications.  Sponsor’s 
obligation to indemnify shall not be restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received by the United States of 
America (Bureau of Reclamation), Casitas, or its directors, officers, employees, or authorized volunteers. 
 
14. Permits and Notifications for the Event. 
 

(a) Sponsor shall notify and make all necessary arrangements, as applicable, with state and local public 



 9

agencies, including, but not limited to, the Ventura County Sheriff's Office, California Highway Patrol, Ventura 
County Health Department, Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control and the County Fire Department.  If 
applicable, fire permits shall include those necessary for public use of a large tent and use of explosives and blank 
ammunition.  Sponsor agrees to comply with the license issued by the Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control 
issued for the Event, including, but not limited to, hours, method of dispensing, and the cessation of sales upon the 
order of any peace officer or Casitas staff. 
 

(b) In the event any federal, state or local public agency, including the Bureau of Reclamation, does 
not require specific permits to be issued for the activities covered by this Agreement, Sponsor shall follow all rules 
and regulations governing the activities as if permits had been issued by these agencies. 
 

(c) Prior to commencement of any construction, Sponsor shall obtain from Casitas written approval of 
all plans, specifications and construction cost estimates for any improvements to Casitas’ premises.  Casitas’ 
General Manager may waive these procedures for minor construction, if in the General Manager’s opinion, these 
steps are not necessary. 
 
15. Overnight Camping in the Event Area.  Sponsor may have up to two units stay Friday and Saturday 
nights of the Event weekend in the Event Area at no charge to provide security for Sponsor’s equipment. 
  

(a) Sponsor shall be responsible for staffing the auxiliary gate(s) when the gate(s) are open. 
 

 (b) Campers are not permitted to camp within two hundred feet (200') of the shoreline. 
 

(c) No waste water shall be discharged onto the ground.  All waste water shall be contained and 
disposed of properly at a local dump station. 
 

(d) Sufficient restrooms and trash receptacles shall be provided by Sponsor for campers and be 
conveniently placed for ease of use. 
 
 (e) Sponsor shall ensure that staff, vendors and participants camping at the Event site shall comply 
with paragraph 20 hereinafter. 
 
16. Use of Animals at the Event.  This Agreement does not permit the use of animals.  
 
17. Use of Explosives at the Event.  This Agreement does not permit the use of explosives.   
 
18. Taxes and Assessments.  A taxable possessory interest may be created by this Agreement and Sponsor 
may be subject to the payment of property taxes levied on such interest.  Sponsor shall pay before delinquent any 
and all taxes and assessments levied against Sponsor by reason of Sponsor's use and occupancy of the Recreation 
Area.        
 
19. Publicity.  Sponsor hereby agrees that Casitas may utilize any publicity generated for, or because of, any of 
the events for the mutual and/or separate benefit of Sponsor and/or Casitas at no cost to Casitas.  Sponsor agrees 
that any printed material used by Sponsor shall include the words “Lake Casitas Recreation Area”. 
 
20. Compliance with Rules and Regulations.  The Sponsor hereby certifies that he/she has read and will 
comply with the Park rules, regulations, laws, etc. governing the Lake Casitas Recreation Area including, but not 
limited to, quiet hours after 10:00 P.M., and will be responsible for the activities and conduct of all people whose 
activities and conduct are a result of the Event or arise out of the Event.  Sponsor shall enforce the applicable park 
rules and regulations in the Event Area.  Failure to do so may result in forfeiture of the security deposit.  Any 
person or persons violating any Park rules or laws may be subject to citation and/or eviction from the Park at 
Casitas' sole discretion.  Sponsor must comply with Casitas' decision and, if necessary, assist Park Staff in the 
removal of any such person or persons. 
 



 10

21. Raffles and Games of Chance.  Sponsor hereby agrees that no-one will be allowed to participate in games 
of chance, raffles, or any such activities, which contravene state and local lottery laws. 
 
22. Discrimination.  The Sponsor agrees that during the use of Casitas Municipal Water District's Recreation 
Area facilities, no qualified person shall be prevented from participating or denied the benefits of, or otherwise be 
subjected to discrimination because of the person's race, color, national origin, age or handicap. 
 
23. Title VI Compliance.  Sponsor hereby acknowledges that as a subrecipient of federal funds, Casitas 
Municipal Water District's Recreation Area cannot discriminate against anyone on the basis of race, color, natural 
origin, age or handicap in the provision of its services to the public.  Anyone who believes that he/she has been 
subjected to discrimination can file a complaint either with the Casitas Municipal Water District's Recreation Area, 
1055 Ventura Avenue, Oak View, CA  93022, or the Office for Equal Opportunity, U.S. Department of the Interior, 
Washington, D.C. 20240. 
 
24. Law & Jurisdiction Governing.  This Agreement is being delivered and shall be deemed entered into in 
the State of California and shall be governed by and construed according to the laws of such state.  Any dispute, 
claim or controversy between the parties shall be arbitrated and/or litigated in Ventura County, California.  If any 
provision of this Agreement is determined to be illegal, invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, the remaining provisions hereof shall not be affected thereby and shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
25. Entire Agreement. 
 

(a) This document constitutes the entire Agreement between Casitas and Sponsor for the use granted at 
the Lake Casitas Recreation Area for the Event. 
 

(b) This document may be modified only by further written agreement between the parties hereto.  
Any such modification shall not be effective unless and until executed by Sponsor and in the case of Casitas, except 
as otherwise specifically authorized herein, until approved and executed by Casitas’ Park Services Manager, 
General Manager and/or Board of Directors.  
 
26. Time is of the Essence.  Time is of the essence for all the time frames of this Agreement. 
 
27. Term.   The term of this Agreement shall commence upon execution of this Agreement and 
terminate on October 31, 2014 unless sooner terminated pursuant to Item 8 hereof.  
 
28. Inquiries.  Please direct all inquiries regarding this Agreement to: 
 

 CMWD: Suzi Taylor, Park Services Officer 
     11311 Santa Ana Road 
     Ventura, CA  93001 
      Tel: (805) 649-2233, ext. 101 
    Cell (805) 797-1519 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 11

 
 
28. Representatives.  The representatives of the parties to this Agreement are those set forth below: 
 
Ojai Rotary - West:  David May                 CMWD: Carol Belser, Park Services Manager 
P.O. Box 1501        11311 Santa Ana Road  
Ojai, CA  93024       Ventura, CA  93001 
Tel: (805) 907-2378       Tel: (805) 649-2233, ext. 111, Cell:  (805) 797-1517 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have executed this Agreement this _______ day of September, 2010. 
 

SPONSOR:   
OJAI ROTARY - WEST 
 
By:  ___________________________________________ 

Stephanie Midgett, President 
 

CASITAS: 
CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

 
By: ____________________________________________ 

Richard Handley, President 
 
 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
DATE:  September 3, 2010 
 
TO:         Board of Directors 
 
FROM: General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 
Re:  Consideration of Participation Funding – Watershed Coordinator – Ventura 
  River Watershed Council 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors authorize the General Manager to provide 
participation costs for a Ventura River Watershed Coordinator position for a period of three 
years, in cooperation with the many other local agencies in the Ventura River area. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 
 
Since 2006, Casitas has been a participative member of the Ventura River Watershed 
Council and a part of the integrated regional watershed management planning effort.  
Through this participation, Casitas and other members of the Council have been able to 
obtain grant funding through Proposition 50. Most recently is Casitas’ grant to assist Senior 
Canyon Mutual Water Company with improving water supply reliability.  The members of the 
Council have cooperatively contributed to cover the cost of having a County employee 
administer the Council meetings.  Recently, the Council decided to pursue Prop 84 grant 
funding and matching funds from Council members to retain a full-time watershed 
coordinator.   The grant is to fund the position for three years during which time the top 
priority for this person would be to facilitate the development of a watershed plan and seek 
grants for the Ventura River Watershed Council.  The watershed coordinator will be 
supervised and supported by the Ojai Valley Land Conservancy Director.  The cost of the 
position is $70,000, of which $17,500 per year is to be sought through member matching 
funds.  The job description is attached for further reference. 
 
At this time, the proposed annual cost to Casitas is $1,778.  This cost is likely to rise slightly 
as it is already known that Ventura River County Water District and Meiners Oaks Water 
District have declined to contribute $500 each to the cost sharing program. 
 
It has been requested by OVLC Director Greg Gamble that Casitas consider joining into the 
contribution and provide a notice of commitment, if so desired. 
 
   











Casitas Municipal Water District
Monthly Cost Analysis
2010/2011
09/01/2010

Marzula & Operation Fisheries Project Name Cost of the
Marzula  of Robles Fish Passage Fish Passage

11-5-21-5049-12 11-5-??-????-14 11-5-28-50??-??

2003/2004 0.00 132,143.20 6,066.93
2004/2005 0.00 298,006.35 39,124.63 8,079,888.06
2005/2006 274,270.75 144,052.92 93,406.52 0.00
2006/2007 194,409.73 110,707.78 188,651.75 114,790.04
2007/2008 21,111.90 117,299.80 272,644.56 0.00
2008/2009 1,207.75 88,201.00 307,739.00 0.00
2009/2010 216,797.47 124,874.54 342,756.94 0.00

Expenditures
July 0.00 3,089.39 20,641.01

August 0.00 12,159.37 19,985.93

September 0.00 0.00 0.00

October 0.00 0.00 0.00

November 0.00 0.00 0.00

December 0.00 0.00 0.00

January 0.00 0.00 0.00

Feburary 0.00 0.00 0.00 Less: Grants
CA Coastal Conservancy -1,750,000.00

March 0.00 0.00 0.00 CA Dept of Fish & Game -1,500,000.00
CA Dept of Fish & Game -1,000,000.00

April 0.00 0.00 0.00 Pacific States Marine -8,988.86
    (Timber Debris Fence)

May 0.00 0.00 0.00 Pacific States Marine -18,980.00
    (Vaki Shroud)

June

Total Cost YTD 0.00 15,248.76 40,626.94 Total Cost TD    8,194,678.10

Less: Grant Funding    -4,277,968.86

Total Project Cost 707,797.60 1,030,534.35 1,291,017.27 Total Project Cost   3,916,709.24

Total: Operation of Robles, Fisheries and Fish Passage 6,238,260.86

Prepared by dcollin 09/01/2010 Page 1



INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

TO: STEVE WICKSTRUM 

FROM: SUSAN MCMAHON 

SUBJECT:  PAK 27 TREATMENT  

DATE: 09/03/2010 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
A shoreline treatment targeted towards the algal species Lyngbya was done on August 17, 2010.  The 
reason for treating this algae is that it can cause significant blockage of the filters at the treatment 
plant.  The algaecide used for the treatment (PAK 27) contains sodium carbonate and hydrogen 
peroxide.  It is advertised to selectively remove harmful blue green algae, while not harming 
beneficial aquatic organisms. It does not contain copper and leaves no toxic by-products.  The 
Casitas Board of Directors approved $20,000 for the treatment; approximately $15,000 was used. 
 
The following methods were used to determine the efficacy of the treatment: 
 A) Laboratory Methods: 
  Algal Counts 
  Samples from each intake depth; filtered and visually inspected 
  Visual inspection of lake 
 
 B) Treatment  Plant data and observations: 
  Pilot plant visual observations 
  Differential pressures in the filters (maximum daily) 
  Deviant filters (filter that has different flow than average of the other filters) 
 
Evaluating the results of the treatment was hard to measure objectively because of the following 
factors. 

 Breezy and choppy conditions on the day of the treatment   
 Microscopic algal counts are difficult to do for this particular algae 
 An intake gate change improved conditions at the treatment plant; this was done five days 

prior to the algae treatment. 
 We have never performed treatment of this particular algae species in Lake Casitas 
 Plant flow variations affect all of the measurements and observations at the treatment plant 

 
In conclusion, the PAK 27 treatment did have a beneficial effect based on the observation of 
damaged algal cells as seen under the microscope and the visual appearance of the lab filter profiles.  
A treatment for the entire lake would probably been more effective but much more costly 
(somewhere in the range of $190,000-$295,000).  Lyngbya is difficult to eradicate because it forms a 
mucilage covering which makes it resistant to treatment.  It is not possible to say if PAK 27 works as 
well as a copper based product because we have not treated for this particular algae with copper and 
can’t make comparisons.  Final observation is that there was a major heat wave during the days 
following the treatment; this usually makes algae growth increase, but in this case the algae growth 
actually appeared to decrease.   

 

 



 1

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

LAKE CASITAS RECREATION AREA 
 

DATE:  August 13, 2010  
 
TO:  Steve Wickstrum, General Manager 
 
FROM: Carol Belser, Park Services Manager 
   
SUBJECT: Recreation Area Monthly Report for July 2010  
     
Visitation Comparison 
The following is a comparison of visitations for July:   
 

  July 2009 July 2010  June 2010 
Visitor Days 111,764 114,756 76,036 
Camps 9,508 9,845 6,747 
Cars 27,941 28,689 19,009 
Boats 619 585 547 
Kayaks & Canoes 14 7 12 

  
 Revenue Operations 
July 2009              $629,628 
July 2010               $572,749 
% Change               -9.034 

 
Fiscal Year to Date Visitation 

2008/2009 111,764
2009/2010 114,756
% Change 2.67

 
Activities and Upcoming Events 
Astronomy night was held July 3rd. Sixty customers were in attendance.  
 
Boating/Fishing 
There were 30 cables sold for new inspections, 12 vessel re-inspections, 928 boats were retagged. 
Angler’s Choice held a night tournament on July 10th.  Moonlight Fishing by boat was held July 17 th had 
28 boats participate.   Night fishing from the shore was held July 23 and 24.   
  
Incidents 
There were 9 field investigations by PSO or APSO staff for body contact made, with no citations issued. 
No-swimming signs regarding the no-body contact policy in both English and Spanish will be posted where 
most infractions occur.  
 
Projects, Meetings and Training 
Dale Godfrey was hired as the new Maintenance Foreman after an in-house recruitment process replacing retired 



 2

Jerry Grigsby. Staff are in the process of recruiting a new Maintenance Worker I whose job will primarily focus on 
pump truck operation.   
   
G:\WPDOCS\REPORTS\MONTH\2010\June.2010.doc 































   CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
TREASURER'S MONTHLY REPORT OF INVESTMENTS

09/01/10
 

Weighed 
Average 

Type of Date of Amount of Current Rate of Date of % of Days to Days to
Invest Institution CUSIP Maturity Deposit Mkt Value Interest Deposit Portfolio Maturity Maturity

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XS4S40 09/16/11 $726,316 $724,500 3.490% 07/01/10 5.81% 375 22
*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XSP930 12/13/13 $743,750 $745,941 2.956% 07/01/10 5.98% 1182 71
*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XWNB10 06/12/15 $729,603 $742,000 2.775% 07/01/10 5.95% 1721 102
*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XWW470 03/09/12 $707,315 $706,342 1.116% 06/30/10 5.67% 548 31
*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3134A4VG60 11/17/15 $807,683 $806,092 4.750% 07/19/10 6.47% 1876 121
*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EABS70 09/27/13 $766,605 $767,375 3.783% 07/01/10 6.16% 1106 68
*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EACD90 07/28/14 $739,907 $747,467 2.849% 07/01/10 6.00% 1407 84
*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EACE70 09/21/12 $723,646 $720,566 2.066% 06/30/10 5.78% 740 43
*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EACF40 12/15/11 $706,398 $706,125 1.116% 06/30/10 5.66% 464 26
*TB Federal Natl MTG Assn 31398AYY20 09/16/14 $739,123 $747,033 2.858% 07/01/10 5.99% 1455 87
*TB US Treasury Inflation Index NTS 912828JE10 07/15/18 $1,055,030 $1,064,428 1.326% 07/06/10 8.54% 2834 242
*TB US Treasury Notes 912828JW10 12/31/13 $709,352 $715,967 1.487% 04/01/10 5.74% 1200 69
*TB US Treasury Notes 912828LZ10 11/30/14 $718,129 $729,036 2.080% 07/01/10 5.85% 1529 89
*TB US Treasury Notes 912828MB30 12/15/12 $709,707 $708,967 1.115% 06/30/10 5.69% 824 47
*TB US Treasury Inflation Index NTS 912828MF40 01/15/20 $1,041,021 $1,050,822 1.342% 07/01/10 8.43% 3374 284
*TB US Treasury Notes 912828ML10 12/31/11 $707,191 $705,740 0.992% 06/30/10 5.66% 480 27

Accrued Interest (Interest paid at time of purchase) $58,062 $78,404

Total in Gov't Sec. (11-00-1055-00&1065) $12,388,838 $12,466,806 76.68%

*CD CD - $0 $0 0.000% 0.00%

Total Certificates of Deposit: (11.13506 $0 $0 0.00%

** LAIF as of:  (11-00-1050-00) N/A $1,667,570 $1,667,570 0.56% Estimated 10.26%

*** COVI as of: (11-00-1060-00) N/A $2,124,379 $2,124,379 1.41% Estimated 13.07%

TOTAL FUNDS INVESTED $16,180,787 $16,258,754 100.00%

Total Funds Invested last report $16,171,765 $16,171,765

Total Funds Invested 1 Yr. Ago $14,645,946 $14,645,946

**** CASH IN BANK (11-00-1000-00) EST $704,342 $704,342
CASH IN Western Asset Money Market $10,503 $10,503

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS $16,895,632 $16,973,599

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS 1 YR AGO $15,150,558 $15,150,558

*CD CD - Certificate of Deposit
*TB TB - Federal Treasury Bonds or Bills 
** Local Agency Investment Fund 
*** County of Ventura Investment Fund

Estimated interest rate, actual not due at present time.
**** Cash in bank

No investments were made pursuant to subdivision (i) of Section 53601, Section 53601.1 
and subdivision (i) Section 53635 of the Government Code.
All investments were made in accordance with the Treasurer's annual statement of 
investment policy.


	9-8-10 agenda.pdf
	8-11-10 min
	SLIP memo
	SLIP renewal
	Bill list
	Rec Minutes 08 09 10
	award contract
	Resolution335
	5-yearagreementmemo08122010
	resolution big chili cook off 08122010
	Agreementbigchilicookoff20105yr
	Watershed Coordinator Memo 09 03 2010
	Watershed Coordinator 09032010
	Board Report - Montly Costs 20010-11
	Sheet1

	PAK 27 treatment memo
	Rec Report for July 2010
	Activities and Upcoming Events
	There were 9 field investigations by PSO or APSO staff for body contact made, with no citations issued. No-swimming signs regarding the no-body contact policy in both English and Spanish will be posted where most infractions occur. 
	Projects, Meetings and Training

	Ltr from AWA
	Ltr from NMFS re Mosler Quarry
	News articles
	Investment Report 9-1-2010
	A


